<u>Minutes</u>

CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND LEARNING POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE



1 March 2017

Meeting held at Committee Room 3 Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

	Committee Members Present: Councillor Jane Palmer (Chairman), Councillor Nick Denys (Vice-Chairman), Councillor Jem Duducu, Councillor Dominic Gilham, Councillor Becky Haggar, Councillor Allan Kauffman, Councillor Beulah East (in place of Councillor John Oswell), Councillor Jagjit Singh and Councillor Jan Sweeting and Tony Little (Roman Catholic Diocesan Representative)
	LBH Officers Present : Laurie Baker (Interim Head of School Improvement/Education Quality & Strategy) and Anisha Teji (Democratic Services Officer)
53.	APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)
	Apologies were received from Councillor John Oswell, who was substituted by Councillor Beulah East.
54.	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THE MEETING (Agenda Item 2)
	There were no declarations of interest.
55.	MATTERS NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item 3)
	There were none.
56.	TO CONFIRM THAT ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 4)
	It was confirmed that all items were Part I and would be heard in public.
57.	TO AGREE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 11 JANUARY 2017 (Agenda Item 5)
	Members noted that Tony Little did not have his role listed next to his name.
	RESOLVED -
	 That the minutes from 19 January 2017 be confirmed as an accurate record subject to inserting the role of Tony Little.

58. CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND LEARNING POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE -MAJOR REVIEW OF THE LOCAL AUTHORITY'S CURRENT AND FUTURE RELATIONSHIP WITH ACADEMIES AND FREE SCHOOLS (Agenda Item 6)

Maintained school perspective

The Committee welcomed Simon Hawley, Headteacher for Colham Manor Primary School to the meeting, to provide his view on the Local Authority's relationship with maintained/academy/free schools. He referred the Committee to a handout sheet he had produced.

The following points were made by Simon Hawley during his presentation and in response to questions from Committee Members:

- There were a majority of services that Colham Manor Primary relied on, provided by the Local Authority as either services of a statutory duty or service level agreement. There was a variation in quality between these services.
- It was important that schools were supported and it was difficult to know the points of contact within the Local Authority. It was suggested that a contact register/directory would be useful to ascertain contact details for the responsible officer within the Local Authority.
- The proposed changes in the Children Centre could have been delivered better if Local Authorities had enlisted the support of headteachers in redesigning services that would have also delivered savings. This would have avoided a "done to" approach that many of those involved felt.
- The Hillingdon School Improvement Plan was an excellent piece of strategic work, and it is important that there is a focus on clarifying a longer term plan for this work.
- Headteachers meet and share ideas and feedback in the Primary Forum Executive. The fortnightly briefings produced by the Local Authority are good and provide useful updates for headteachers.
- Local leader groups provide headteachers with good quality CPD.
- Sometimes headteachers feel frustrated by 'peripheral' issues that can prove to be a distraction from teaching and learning and school improvement. For example buildings, car parking etc.
- The way to hold schools to account is through effective partnerships and by building trust between schools and the Local Authority so that difficult discussions can be had.
- Issues which cause headteachers concern include the constant pressure about results; adequacy of inspections; dealing with challenging pupils and parents; teacher recruitment in suburban London and finances. Colham Manor Primary benefits from pupil premium grants but not all schools are this fortunate. Many schools benefit from the expertise of skilled business managers to assist with the financial aspect of the school running.
- The interest of maintained headteachers in conversion to academy status varies and many head teachers feel nervous about losing control of their own school. In Hillingdon most maintained schools headteachers have considerable autonomy already and if they did decide to convert there is the chance that their Ofsted history could be deleted.
- Additional services which would be useful to schools included teams going beyond statutory duties - particularly around vulnerable pupils ; a specialist knowledge team focussing on pupils at risk of exclusion and a key Local Authority contact point which addressed issues such as legal and Health & Safety concerns.

Academy/free school perspective

The Committee welcomed Colin Tucker, Headteacher for Ryefield Primary School to the meeting, to provide his view on the Local Authority's relationship with maintained/ academy/ free schools.

The following points were made by Colin Tucker during his presentation and in response to questions from Committee Members:

- The deciding factor for procuring services was the quality and value for money of the services.
- Financial pressures could affect schools buying into Local Authority services.
- The risks both maintained schools and free schools encountered was "isolationism".
- Generally academies opted to buy into Local Authority services if they provided a benefit to the pupils.
- There was an element of competition between schools which was demonstrated through league tables. There was a need for mutual cooperation between all schools irrespective of status which in turn would produce positive outcomes, putting Hillingdon in a good place nationally.
- Multi Academy Trusts tended to grow and grow which resulted in them having their own form of Local Authority providing services.
- Issues which caused headteachers concern included the vulnerability of children and wanting to do the best for their pupils.
- Services areas outsourced within Ryefield included the legal team, admin team and finance although some of these services were shared.
- Attending the Primary Forum Executive meeting, the Local Authority's fortnightly briefings and conferences and the scheme of mentors for new headteachers provided good support to all headteachers.
- There is a perception that there is a churn of services in the council. Ryefield could be described as a being a "holding school" as pupils left during the course of the academic year due to various reasons. One of the reasons could be due to the fact that there were a number of other schools nearby with capacity. This affected the ability to demonstrate outcomes as high mobility can make it difficult to meet targets.

Headteacher surveys

The Committee was concerned about the late notification of responses from the headteachers surveys. The Committee was informed that there was a delay in sending the survey out to headteachers and that there was initially a limited response. The number of responses increased after a reminder was sent out by officers.

The Committee proposed meeting outside of the POC meeting to discuss the responses of the survey. The Committee decided that the survey would remain open to seek more responses.

RESOLVED -

- 1. That the witnesses be thanked for the information they had presented and the evidence be used as part of the review.
- 2. That the responses from the surveys be discussed outside the POC meeting and the survey remain open for further responses.

9.	STANDARDS AND QUALITY IN EDUCATION IN HILLINGDON 2016/17 (Agenda Item 7)
	The Committee considered a report on the Standards and Quality in Education in Hillingdon in 2015/2016.
	Although not all officers who contributed to the report were able to attend the meeting an officer was available to answer the Committee's questions and feedback.
	The Committee noted that the Standards and Education Quality in Education report had not been submitted to the POC before Cabinet. The Committee preferred for matters relating to the POC to go the POC in the first instance and then to Cabinet.
	It was reported that:
	 A number of services would remain as statutory duties around the promotion high standards of education.
	 Overall achievement within early years and primary phases had progressed an were moving in line with London aspirations. There had been particula improvement in the early years sector.
	 Areas of concerns related to Key Stage 5 and some aspects of Key Stage performance. Although attainment levels have improved they remain below th London averages in some areas. There were common themes identified particular with white British boys from poor backgrounds. As Hillingdon wa moving forward a number of themes were being identified which were bein worked on at a strategic level.
	 Schools State Partnership Board was involved with working with schools. When school performance was an issue, the Regional Schools Commissioner and the Local Authority had a close working relationship where difficult and robut conversations could be undertaken. In summary school performance levels were progressing positively and areas a concerns have been identified and are worked on in partnership with school of the sch
	leaders
	Although the Committee was grateful for the report, Committee Members would have benefited from a more user friendly formatted report and being able to question the range of officers who contributed to the report. The Committee indicated that it was difficult to conduct a review without being able to ask questions.
	The Committee recognised and commended the improvement in school performances levels across the Borough. Discussion took place on other areas which the Committee requested further information. These included:
	 Additional information on what was raised with the Regional Schoo Commissioner in relation to the two schools in the Borough not performing to the standards expected. Additional information as to where Hillingdon school performance levels stop
	nationally.
	RESOLVED –

	2. That officers be asked to undertake the actions outlined above and bring back the information for the Committee to consider.
60.	CABINET FORWARD PLAN (Agenda Item 8)
	The cabinet forward plan was noted.
61.	WORK PROGRAMME (Agenda Item 9)
	The Committee was mindful that the next POC meeting was scheduled for Tuesday 14 March 2017. The Committee noted that postponing the meeting would impact later meetings scheduled. The Committee therefore decided to go ahead with the meeting as planned and use it to consider recommendations for the major review and to obtain an update on the Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS).
	The Committee noted that the Service Improvement Plan had not been included in the Work Programme. The Committee was informed that the Service Improvement Plan had not been included in the Work Programme since February 2016 and it was usually done on a quarterly basis.
	RESOLVED -
	 That the meeting on Tuesday 14 March 2017 go ahead as scheduled with agenda items on the Major Review recommendations, update on CAMHS, the Cabinet Forward Plan and the Work Programme.
	2) That Democratic Services look into the Service Improvement Plan not being included in the Work Programme.
	The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.48 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions please contact Anisha Teji on 01895 277655. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.